#### CABINET

**MINUTES** of the meeting held on Tuesday, 16 October 2012 commencing at 2.00 pm and finishing at 4.08 pm

#### Present:

**Voting Members:** Councillor Ian Hudspeth – in the Chair

Councillor Ian Hudspeth
Councillor Rodney Rose
Councillor Arash Fatemian
Councillor Nick Carter
Councillor Melinda Tilley
Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles
Councillor Mrs J. Heathcoat
Councillor Kieron Mallon

Other Members in Attendance:

Councillor Alan Armitage (Agenda Items 8 & 10)

Councillor Liz Brighouse (Agenda Item 8)

Councillor Jim Couchman (Agenda Item 6) Councillor Jenny Hannaby (Agenda Item 6) Councillor Anne Purse (Agenda Items 8 & 9) Councillor Roz Smith (Agenda Items 7 & 8)

### Officers:

Whole of meeting Joanna Simons (Chief Executive); Sue Whitehead (Chief

Executive's Office

Part of meeting

Item Name

6 John Jackson, Director for Social & Community Services

7 Kathy Wilcox (Corporate Finance)

8 Huw Jones, Director for Environment & Economy; Jim

Daughton (Highway & Transport)

9 Huw Jones, Director for Environment & Economy; Daniel

Round (Strategy & Infrastructure Planning)

10 Alexandra Bailey (Performance & Review)

13 John Jackson, Director for Social & Community Services

The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda tabled at the meeting, and decided as set out below. Except insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

### 106/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(Agenda Item. 1)

Apologies were received from Councillor Louise Chapman and Councillor Charles Shouler.

#### **107/12 MINUTES**

(Agenda Item. 3)

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2012 were approved and signed subject to the following correction:

Councillor Janet Godden and Councillor Roz Smith added to the list of other Members present.

### 108/12 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS

(Agenda Item. 4)

Councillor Alan Armitage had given notice of the following question to Councillor Rodney Rose:

"Why were the local councillors not informed at the right time of the demise RH Transport and the effects on the local bus services for their divisions?"

Councillor Rose replied:

"County council staff briefed councillors and made sure all updates on the hard work undertaken to find new bus operators for RH Routes were emailed to county councillors throughout Thursday, 4 October and Friday, 5 October. The website was updated promptly at each important juncture and the media linked in with the council as part of a managed public information exercise – both inside and outside of normal working hours. The initial suggestion that RH Transport were facing problems only came to the attention of officers during the course of Wednesday, 3 October."

Supplementary: Councillor Armitage asked whether Councillor Rose accepted that the answer was not correct as key members including the Opposition Leader had not been informed for some time and that a review would allow lessons to be learnt. Councillor Rose replied that that was not his understanding. Huw Jones had phoned members personally all evening although Councillor Rose accepted that the order may not have been as some would have wished. Cabinet Members commended the work undertaken by Huw Jones and his Team in difficult circumstances.

Councillor Roz Smith had given notice of the following question to Councillor Charles Shouler

"Will the failure of RH Transport end up costing the council more for the services provided?"

In Councillor Shouler's absence the Leader replied:

"The cost to the Council is likely to be more than £400,000 although absolute final costs are still to be settled."

Supplementary: Councillor **Roz Smith\*** asked whether monitoring arrangements would be changed in the light of the failure of RH Transport. The Leader replied that all contracts went through checks and due diligence. The Council supported the contract as much as possible. On Friday officers ensured that children got to school and he passed his personal compliments to everyone involved.

Councillor Jenny Hannaby had given notice of the following question to Councillor Arash Fatemian

"Would he agree that putting up the charges for Day Centres, some as high as 700%, might lead to the demise of our centres so vital for the health and wellbeing of elderly residents?"

### Councillor Fatemian replied:

"Increasing charges is a difficult issue but we are committed to finding a way to continue providing these services and it is important to note that these charges will **only** apply to people who do not meet the criteria to receive services under FACS (Fair Access to Care). Those in greatest need and those who cannot afford to pay will continue to have their care funded by the council.

As you say the proposed changes do appear to be a high increase and that is mainly due to the fact that charges have not been reviewed or increased to date. The current charge of £4.81 in the seven social and community managed centres is not sustainable and we are consulting on an increase of £15 per day for 5 hours of attendance. This represents approximately half of the actual cost to provide the service so the County Council would continue to subsidise the centres by up to 50%. I think the 700% you refer to must be in regards to the Centre run by Leonard Cheshire in Witney, which currently charges a much lower rate, so there will be a bigger gap between current and proposed charges.

We have looked at how best to sustain these centres, which we know provide important support to people, their families and carers in local communities and as such have had to look at all options regarding funding. As part of that work, we looked at what other similar Local Authorities are doing and we found that many are charging the full cost, which we believe would be too cost prohibitive, so in Oxfordshire we are only consulting on an increase in charges to people, as we have decided not to charge at full cost.

I am mindful of the potential risks due to the proposed increases and our aim is to avoid, as you say, "the demise of our centres" by finding a pragmatic outcome, which can sustain these services into the future.

As you know the consultation ends on 31<sup>st</sup> October and we will need to analyse the feedback and including whether customers are indicating they could not use the centres if the proposed rates were introduced. At that point we can fully assess the risks and consider options to mitigate those accordingly and report to cabinet in the New Year.

We are statutorily obliged to consult with the people who would be directly affected by any policy change. For that reason we have gone directly to the resource centre users and asked for their views and also held a number of face-to-face events. People using the centres have been given all the information they need to take part, using a variety of methods in this consultation and over 50% of service users have given us their views so far ( that is 459 out of 800). Organisations such as Age UK and other stakeholders have also asked to consult directly with their members."

In thanking Councillor Fatemian for his comprehensive answer Councillor Hannaby indicated that it would be a case of looking forward to what would happen on 31 October and she invited Councillor Fatemian to visit the newly refurbished Day Centre at Wantage.

\* N.B Name corrected at Cabinet on 27 November 2012.

### 109/12 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS

(Agenda Item. 5)

The following requests to address the meeting had been agreed: Item 6 – Councillor Jenny Hannaby, Shadow Cabinet Member for Adult Services

Councillor Jim Couchman, Chairman of Adult Services scrutiny Committee (at the invitation of the Chairman)

Also attending: Sir Jonathan Michael and Andrew Steven from OUHT and Ian Busby and Mary Keenan from OCCG.

Item 7 - Councillor Roz Smith, Shadow Cabinet Member for Finance

Item 8 – Councillor Alan Armitage, Opposition Deputy Leader Cllr Anne Purse, Local Councillor for Wheatley Cllr Roz Smith, Local Councillor for Barton & Churchill Cllr Liz Brighouse, Local Councillor for Barton & Churchill

Item 9 - Councillor Anne Purse, Shadow Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure

Item 10 – Councillor Alan Armitage, Opposition Deputy Leader

Councillor Purse speaking as Shadow Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure on Item 9, OCC Response to the Consultation on the Cherwell Local Plan was pleased to see development in places like Bicester. Her only concern was the increased incidents of flooding in places such as Otmoor. A village suffered from sewage flooding when there was a lot of rain. She

asked that the Cabinet Member take note of the problem and ask that effective measures be taken to avoid it.

# 110/12 OXFORD UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS TRUST APPLICATION TO BECOME A FOUNDATION TRUST

(Agenda Item. 6)

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust (OUHT) was formed in November 2011 from the Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre and the Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals NHS Trust.

OUHT is currently applying to become a Foundation Trust. Foundation Trusts differ from other NHS Trusts in that they have a membership drawn from communities served by the Trust and the staff that work for it. The membership elects a Council of Governors which is involved by the Trust's Board of Directors in setting the future direction for the Trust. Foundation Trusts have the freedom to respond to local needs, and through their public and staff membership they are able to reflect the concerns and wishes of their local population. The government has said that all NHS Trusts must become Foundation Trusts by 2014.

Cabinet considered a report that set out the possible issues relevant to the application by Oxford University Hospital Trust (OUHT) to become a Foundation Trust so that the Cabinet could express a view to both the Board of OUHT and also the Strategic Health Authority. The paper reflected discussions with both the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) and the OUHT.

Councillor Jenny Hannaby, Shadow Cabinet Member for Adult Services commended the full discussion held at the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee meeting a note of which was before Cabinet. Her main concern was that the focus on specialist services should not be to the detriment of more mundane general care including for the elderly and she gave an example of cataract operations. Communication was also a worry and she gave an example relating to midwifery services generally and the service in Wantage specifically where she had received conflicting information.

Councillor Jim Couchman, Chairman of Adult Services Scrutiny Committee, advised that he had attended one of the consultation meetings and had also been at the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee meeting. He sought clarity and assurances that the basic services would remain a principal role of the Foundation Trust. He also sought assurances that the OUHT would meet the financial tests for Foundation Trust status and would not be undermined by the existing PFI deals. He further hoped that there was a robust future for The Horton Hospital and that it would continue to improve.

Sir Jonathan Michael and Andrew Steven from OUHT and Ian Busby and Mary Keenan from OCCG were invited to the table.

John Jackson, Director for Social & Community Services in introducing the report explained the national context for the application, and highlighted the factors that needed to be taken into account to build a successful Foundation Trust in the eyes of the people of Oxfordshire. He noted that Sir Jonathan Mitchell had committed the Trust to the successful delivery of these issues and further noted the useful discussion that had been held with OCCG.

Issues highlighted included the concern mentioned above that specialist work receives greater attention than more routine District General Hospital work which more closely affects the people of Oxfordshire; the importance of maintaining the highest possible standards of care including nursing standards; the continued strong commitment to working in partnership; the move away from focussing most resources on hospital care to supporting people in the community including support for the effective delivery of prevention and early intervention; and continued support for The Horton within the commitment to make services as local as possible.

John Jackson drew attention to the letter from Sir Jonathan Michael and the comments of the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee. He added that Sue Butterworth, the Chairman of the Local Involvement Network (LINk) was unable to attend. LINk represented public views about the NHS and adult social care to help identify ways in which they can be improved. However Sue Butterworth had commented: "I celebrate the specific developments within the NHS Trust towards Foundation status, as indeed I do with recent news of a newly funded partnership between Oxford University and the OUH NHS Trust. However, I am particularly interested in the full inclusion of the wider population of the County in any developments in this area and would want to see robust evidence of integration of some services; partnerships across the sector and improved communication between departments. Basic customer service costs nothing and is often overlooked."

Councillor Fatemian in formally moving the recommendation commented that the benefits of Foundation Trust status were well set out in the report. He noted the widespread concern over specialist services overshadowing District General Hospital services and emphasised that the Council would want reassurance over the commitment to day to day services. He also paid tribute to the increased partnership working in Oxfordshire which was beginning to receive national recognition.

Sir Jonathan Michael responding to questions from Councillor Fatemian highlighted the Trust's commitment to providing high quality care emphasising that the delivery of patient care was their business alongside education and training and research and development. It was difficult to prove their commitment to District General Hospital work but pointed to their strategic objective to provide high quality local services. Specialist work was still only 30% of income and they had responded to commissioners, sometimes by the reduction in the amount of certain specialist services. Partnership working was the key to delivering local services in an integrated

way. Referring to the question of finance he gave an assurance that PFI was not an issue going forward.

During discussion the following points and further questions were raised:

- (1) Reference was made to the Community Partnership Network in the North of the County, links to South Warwickshire and South East Northamptonshire and how engagement with the public would be taken forward. A further point was made that the area stretched into West Oxfordshire.
- (2) What effect would the European Working Time Directive have on the training of hospital staff and on services provided particularly at The Horton? (3) Did the OCCG support the application?
- (4) Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles proposed an additional point of principle seeking a commitment to continued support for services in Community Hospitals such as peripheral clinics, minor injuries units and midwifery units.
- (5) Support was expressed for first responders in rural areas.
- (6) It was queried whether clinicians had the skills to make good managers.
- (7) Councillor Rodney Rose gave personal thanks for the excellent care he had received over the past year. However he noted that he lived some miles from the hospital and although it had been fine for him many people would find local services easier. He asked what vision there was for the local delivery of services?
- (8) It was queried what steps were in place to ensure local influence of services and how far down it would go?
- (9) It was confirmed that the recommendation point about ensuring frail older people are treated with dignity and respect was not an aspiration but a reflection of the current position.
- (10) Would the lack of co-terminosity with County Boundaries have any impact?

In response Sir Jonathan Michael and Andrew Stevens explained the process to ensure genuine engagement took place and the commitment to working with commissioning colleagues. The experiences in the North of the County would shape how this was taken forward.

With regard to the European Working Times Directive there was a balance to be had between a reasonable working life and the experience needed to take the Trust forward. There would be a balance between trainees and fully trained staff and it was likely that there would be a slight move toward more senior staff delivering care. Trainees would continue to need practical experience.

lan Busby stated that although it was for the PCT to give formal support the OCCG had contributed to the process and would also be commenting formally. They supported the principles laid out in the report but would identify a number of other areas where they would be looking for continuous improvement. The focus was about improvement for the community. They would be working very closely with the Trust to try and ensure that what the public wanted and needed in secondary care was delivered.

Mary Keenan referring to clinicians being managers highlighted that they would be helping clinicians to develop the necessary skills. Referring to her experience in Chipping Norton first responders had made a difference to response times.

With regard to the vision for more local services Sir Jonathan Michael commented that there was a balance. Some services such as major trauma were best centralised but this did not apply to all services. It was very much about the integration of services with care in a specialist centre but continuing support at a local level. It was hoped that closer collaboration would lead to more co-ordinated care.

Andrew Stevens gave a brief outline of how local influence through patient feedback would work. With regard to County boundaries it was not expected that lack of co-terminosity would have any impact as they provided services across a broad catchment area.

**RESOLVED**: to support the application of Oxford University Hospitals Trust to become a Foundation Trust on the basis that it is committed to the following principles:

- (a) Commitment to the highest standards of medical and nursing services for both secondary and tertiary care. This includes ensuring that frail older people are treated with dignity and respect in accordance with the standards set by the Commission on Dignity in Care for Older People.
- (b) Continued and strengthened commitment to working in partnership with the rest of the NHS, local government and other partners to deliver the most effective and efficient ways of meeting the care needs of the people of Oxfordshire.
- (c) Actively supporting the move to providing more care within the community rather than in a hospital setting as part of a broader commitment to the local delivery of services.
- (d) Actively supporting developments which prevent people from needing care or limiting the extent to which they might need care.
- (e) Commitment to the continued existence of the Horton hospital providing district general hospital services to the people of north Oxfordshire; and
- (f) commitment to continued support for services in Community Hospitals:
  - (1) peripheral clinics;
  - (2) minor injuries units (MIU) nurses; radiographers;
  - (3) midwifery units.

## 111/12 2012/13 FINANCIAL MONITORING & BUSINESS STRATEGY DELIVERY REPORT - AUGUST 2012

(Agenda Item. 7)

Cabinet considered a report that focussed on the delivery of the Directorate Business Strategies which were agreed as part of the Service and Resource Planning Process for 2012/13 – 2016/17. Parts 1 and 2 included projections for revenue, reserves and balances as at the end of August 2012. The Capital monitoring was included at Part 3.

Councillor Roz Smith, Shadow Cabinet Member for Finance expressed concerns over the PCT pooled budget overspend. She also highlighted underspends in education and early intervention and highways and emphasised concerns previously expressed about the growing reserves. Referring to the savings for Thornhill Park & Ride she asked that some of the savings be used to alleviate parking problems in the area, particularly to reduce inconsiderate parking.

The Leader in moving the recommendations commented that the physical disability budget would be overspent. He defended the reserves and balances and indicated that that the £20m efficiency reserve would reduce.

Councillor Heathcoat referred to paragraph 10 of the report which referred to the increase in firefighters pay. She noted that the Council had no control over that figure which was decided by the NJC and that in line with a number of other Councils she had written to the Local Government Association querying it.

#### **RESOLVED:** to:

- (a) note the report;
- (b) approve the virement requests set out in Annex 2a;
- (c) note the updated Treasury Management lending list at Annex 7; and
- (d) approve the updated Capital Programme at Annex 9 and the associated changes to the programme in Annex 8c.

# 112/12 OXFORD PARK & RIDE : THORNHILL & WATER EATON INTRODUCTION OF CHARGING

(Agenda Item. 8)

Cabinet considered a report that detailed a requirement to fund an identified revenue gap of £150,000 a year as set out in the Environment & Economy Business Strategy 2011-15 and proposing a system of charging for long stay parking at Thornhill and Water Eaton sites to achieve at least this.

The report summarised the public consultation on the advertised Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for charging; the outcome of a customer survey via citizen panel; and recommends to Cabinet members a proposed level of charging.

Councillor Alan Armitage, Opposition Deputy Leader expressed the Liberal Democrat Group's support for charging every user of the Thornhill Park &

Ride. In the past they had supported free use of all 5 Park & Ride sites but in the current financial squeeze this was no longer appropriate or affordable. He questioned why the decision was not being taken to go ahead with charging all users and referred to the result of the consultation where the majority agreed it was reasonable to charge for parking and that a charge in excess of £5 was reasonable. He asked that in view of the current and new pressures on budgets the opportunity be taken to consider charging all vehicles to use the county-owned park & rides in Oxford.

Councillor Anne Purse, speaking as a local Councillor, supported the introduction of a charge but expressed concerns over the proposed hours of charging and the system of charging. She believed that a lot of people using it for the daily commute to London would come home earlier to avoid the charge and work from home. She supported a review after 6 months but asked that the situation be closely monitored in any case. She also queried whether the fine was sufficient to be a deterrent. She referred to the none Park & Ride use being made of the site by employees of local firms and queried whether companies that used buses to collect employees from the Park & ride site should also be charged.

Councillor Roz Smith, speaking as a local Councillor welcomed the increase in spaces and the changes to the pick up and drop off points. She referred to the first paragraph of the report and the prime purpose to reduce congestion and yet there was no mitigation to the effects of inconsiderate drivers. She commented that the report did not refer to disabled blue badge holders and key workers (for example at the hospital) and that she would have liked to have seen a recommendation addressing their needs. The Chairman replied that there were procedures in place at the hospital for key workers to be given permits to park at the hospital when required.

Councillor Liz Brighouse welcomed the expansion and charging being put in place. She would like to see the proposals go much further and in particular had issues with the likely displacement parking. The relationship of the site with Heathrow needed to be more clearly looked at and there were issues about the carbon footprint. She hoped that the review would look at the communities around the park & Ride site.

Councillor Rose in moving the recommendations emphasised that Park & Ride sites were introduced in the first place to tackle congestion. The proposals were an extension of that principle to ensure that spaces are available. He hoped that once there had been the increase in spaces it would be possible to look at charging for airport stays. He was not against the use of the site by worker's buses as it still contributed to reduced congestion.

#### **RESOLVED:** to:

(a) approve the making of the Oxfordshire County Council (Park and Ride Parking Places - Thornhill and Water Eaton) Order 201\* as advertised

- (b) confirm the timing of the introduction of charges as identified in paragraph 9; and
- (c) instruct officers to undertake a review between 6 12 months of commencement of charging.

# 113/12 OCC RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION ON THE CHERWELL LOCAL PLAN

(Agenda Item. 9)

The Director for Environment, Economy & Customer Services undertook to include the comment on primary school places to be found under the heading Banbury on page 4 Appendix 4 in the section on Villages on that same page.

Cabinet considered a report advising that Cherwell District Council had published the Cherwell Local Plan Proposed Submission Draft for consultation ahead of its submission to Government towards the end of the year. A public examination was expected to follow in 2013, with the Plan adopted by March 2014.

The report and its annexes set out the County Council's response to the consultation and highlighted the key issues for this authority over the next 20 years in Cherwell.

Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles introduced the contents of the report emphasising her support for the review of Green Belt at Begbrooke. She thanked Daniel Round for all his efforts and her views were echoed by Cabinet Members. Councillor Heathcoat added her thanks to the Cabinet Member.

Councillor Mallon expressed the view that on page 113 in relation to seeking consistency on public transport, walking and cycling in strategic development policies this should be where appropriate as it was important to recognise those developments where cars were important.

Responding to a further comment from Councillor Mallon The Director for Environment & Economy undertook to include the comment on primary school places to be found under the heading Banbury on page 4 Appendix 4 in the section on Villages on that same page.

Responding to a query from Councillor Carter Daniel Round outlined the involvement of the Town Councils, advising that Bicester were slightly more advanced in the process than Banbury but that they had both bought in to the master planning process and were broadly content at this stage.

#### **RESOLVED:** to inform Cherwell District Council that:

(a) Oxfordshire County Council believes the Draft Local Plan is broadly sound, subject to our representations in Annex 3 being addressed;

- (b) In principle, Oxfordshire County Council supports the strategic allocated development sites that have been identified in the Draft Local Plan;
- (c) Oxfordshire County Council supports the proposed Green Belt review at Langford Lane/Oxford Airport but requests that this is expanded to incorporate the land in the vicinity of Begbroke Science Park to be considered for key sector employment growth; and
- (d) Oxfordshire County Council requests that the detailed officer comments as outlined in Annex 4 are taken into account before the Plan is submitted to Government

# 114/12 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE 1ST QUARTER 2012

(Agenda Item. 10)

Cabinet considered the quarterly performance monitoring report against the Corporate Plan priorities for Quarter 1, 2012/13.

Councillor Alan Armitage, Deputy Opposition Leader, expressed his dissatisfaction with the report, highlighting the lack of a proper risk management report and suggesting that if it were too sensitive to be considered in public then it should not be referred to in the Forward Plan. He suggested that the wording of the report was not clear and designed to confuse and that in some respects the report was selective. He highlighted in relation to accidents that there was no mention of an increase in fatal and serious accidents to cyclists and an increase in accidents to children which he felt was worthy of mention if the report was intended to identify areas needing attention. He queried the comments in the report on the Customer Services Centre referring to problems he was aware of and to the personal experiences of Councillors.

Councillor Tilley suggested that the figures in relation to accidents and cyclists may not be as simple as it appeared and that the increase may be due to the increasing number of cyclists.

Councillor Rose in moving to note the report commented that the report was a statistical information report which officers did their best to make interesting. Rick management was primarily managed through the audit process. The report captured risks but did not seek to deal with them. On road safety officers did look at cyclists and children but there was a need to be careful when dealing with small numbers. It was not always possible to infer a trend from changes up and down.

In relation to Customer Services councillor Rose stated that September had been one of the busiest months ever and he was aware of a number of issues around recruitment and training that were being addressed. Joanna Simons, Chief Executive added that there were a number of changes taking place around Customer Services and suggested that the Strategy & Partnership Scrutiny Committee consider the changes taking place, which would allow the space to consider detail.

RESOLVED: to note the report and to agree that the Senior Performance & Improvement Manager arrange for the Strategy & Partnership Scrutiny Committee to consider the changes taking place in Customer Services.

## 115/12 DELEGATED POWERS OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - OCTOBER 2012

(Agenda Item. 11)

Cabinet noted the following executive decision taken by the Chief Executive under the specific powers and functions delegated to her under the terms of Part 7.4 of the Council's Constitution - Paragraph 1(A)(c)(i). It is not for scrutiny call in

scrutiny call in.			
Date	Subject	Decision	Reasons for
			Urgency
3 October 2012	Request for Exemption from Contract procedure rules – Bicester Town Centre Access Improvements	Approved an exemption from the full tendering requirements of the Council's Contract Procedure Rules	other work being undertaken by

### 116/12 FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS

(Agenda Item. 12)

The Cabinet considered a list of items for the immediately forthcoming meetings of the Cabinet together with changes and additions set out in the schedule of addenda.

**RESOLVED:** to note the items currently identified for forthcoming meetings.

## 117/12 OXFORD SPIRES ACADEMY NEW BUILDINGS AND ALTERATIONS

(Agenda Item. 13)

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(The information contained in Appendix C to the Business case is exempt in that it falls within the following prescribed category:

3 – information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

It is considered that in this case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, in that such disclosure would prejudice on-going negotiations and disadvantage the company concerned.)

The Chairman indicated that unless a matter was raised relating to Appendix C he intended that the decision be taken in public.

Oxford Spires Academy opened in January 2011, replacing Oxford School. The project is to provide new and refurbished accommodation funded by a £7.808m capital grant the Education Funding Agency (EFA).

The capital project follows the National Academy Framework process established by Partnership for Schools (PfS) now EFA and is similar to that followed by the Oxford Academy (formerly Peers School). Under this process the Authority (OCC) are responsible for procurement of the works (excluding ICT which is procured by the Academy Trust) which it then leases to the Academy Trust by way of a Development Agreement, interim short term lease and ultimately a long term (125 year) lease.

Planning consent is due in early October, 2012 with EFA approval sought soon after this and formal Contract signing programmed for October, 26th, 2012; the Contract Sum is £6,433,777 which will be met from EFA funding, a separate contract for ICT will be let by CfBT Schools Trust. The date for the proposed opening of the new Academy buildings is proposed to be in phases from September 2013.

#### **RESOLVED:** to:

- (a) approve the Final Business Case
- (b) authorise that the contract be let and the development agreement be entered into subject to EFA approval and agreement on funding drawdown; and
- (c) approve the 'passport' of ICT funding to the Academy Trust in accordance with EFA processes

•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	

CA3

.....

Date of signing